
- over - 

AGENDA FOR 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 

REGULAR MEETING 

 
Elkhart Community Schools 

Elkhart, Indiana 
 

March 28, 2017 

 
CALENDAR 

Mar 28 5:30 p.m. Public Work Session, Memorial High School, 2608 California Road 

Mar 28 
Immediately 

following 
Executive Session, Memorial High School, 2608 California Road 

Mar 28 7:00 p.m. Regular Board Meeting, Memorial High School, 2608 California Road 

Apr 11 5:30 p.m. Public Work Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Apr 11 
Immediately 

following 
Executive Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Apr 11 7:00 p.m. Regular Board Meeting, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Apr 18 7:00 a.m. Public Work Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

 

******************* 
 

A. CALL TO ORDER/PLEDGE 

 
B. INVITATION TO SPEAK PROTOCOL 

 

C. SUPERINTENDENT’S STUDENT ADVISORY COUNCIL REPRESENTATIVES 
Central High School 

Memorial High School 

 
D. MINUTES 

March 14, 2017 – Public Work Session 

March 14, 2017 – Regular Board Meeting 
March 21, 2017 – Public Work Session 
 

E. SPECIAL RECOGNITION 
Defender Award Winners 

Move2Stand – Anne Frank Exhibit Docents 

 
F. BUILDING REPORT 

Building Energy Report – Jeff Komins 

Memorial Principal – Cary Anderson 
 

G. TREASURER'S REPORT 

 
 Consideration of Claims 

 

 Gift Acceptance - The administration recommends Board acceptance with 
appreciation of recent donations made to Elkhart Community Schools. 
 

 Financial Report – January 1, 2017 – February 28, 2017 



BOARD AGENDA March 28, 2017 
 
 

2 
   

 Fundraisers - The Business Office recommends Board approval of proposed 
school fundraisers in accordance with Board Policy. 
 

H. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

 Board Policy 3120.01S – Employment of Support Staff - The administration 

presents proposed revisions to Board Policy 3120.01S Employment of Support 
Staff, as initially considered at the March 14th regular Board meeting. 
 

I. NEW BUSINESS 
 

 Amendment Three to Interlocal Agreement Head Start Consortium – The 

administration recommends approval of a proposed amendment to the Head 
Start Interlocal Agreement. 
 

 Board Policy 3422.06 – Secretarial/Business Compensation Plan - The 
administration presents proposed revisions to Board Policy 3422.06 – 
Secretarial/Business Compensation Plan, for initial consideration. 

  
 Board Policy 3422.07 – Executive Assistant Compensation Plan - The 

administration presents proposed revisions to Board Policy 3422.07 – Executive 

Assistant Compensation Plan, for initial consideration. 
 

 Reorganization of Attendance Areas – The administration presents proposed 

changes to the following elementary school attendance areas: Beardsley, 
Hawthorne, Mary Beck, Riverview and Roosevelt, for initial consideration. 
 

 Grant Approval – It is recommended the Board approve submission of grants as 
recommended by the administration. 
 

 Overnight Trip Requests - The administration seeks Board approval of overnight 
trip requests. 

 
J. PERSONNEL 

 

 Conference Leaves - It is recommended the Board grant conference leave 
requests in accordance with Board Policy to staff members as recommended by 
the administration. 

 
 Certified and Classified Staff - See the report and recommendations of the 

administration. 

 
K. INFORMATION AND PROPOSALS 

 

 From Audience 
 

 From Superintendent and Staff 

 
 From Board 

 

L. ADJOURNMENT 
 



MINUTES OF THE 
PUBLIC WORK SESSION 

OF THE 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 

 
Elkhart Community Schools 

Elkhart, Indiana 
 

March 14, 2017 
 
J.C. Rice Educational Services Center, 2720 California Road, Elkhart – 5:30 p.m. 
 

Time/Place 

Board Members Susan C. Daiber Rodney J. Dale 
Present: Karen S. Carter Glenn L. Duncan 
  Carolyn R. Morris 
  Jeri E. Stahr 
Absent: Douglas K. Weaver  
   
ECS Personnel Present: Tony England Kevin Scott 
 Tony Gianesi Doug Thorne 
 Rob Haworth Bob Woods 
 Dawn McGrath Cheryl Waggoner 
   

 

Roll Call 

The Board heard of potential legislative changes to existing petition-
remonstrance policies.  The Board discussed possible locations for upcoming 
work sessions to walk through buildings considered for construction projects as 
a result of the Strategic Plan, and expectations regarding appearance and use of 
those buildings.  The Board also discussed agenda items for the regular Board 
meeting. 

 

Topics 

Discussed 

The meeting adjourned at approximately 6:30 p.m. 

 

Adjournment 

 
APPROVED: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Susan C. Daiber, President 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Karen S. Carter, Vice President 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Douglas K. Weaver, Secretary 
 

 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Rodney J. Dale, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Glenn L. Duncan, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Carolyn R. Morris, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Jeri E. Stahr, Member 

 

 

 

Signatures 

 



 

MINUTES 

OF THE REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 

 
Elkhart Community Schools 

Elkhart, Indiana 

March 14, 2017 
 

J.C. Rice Educational Services Center, 2720 California Road, Elkhart – at 
approximately 7:00 p.m. 
 

Place/Time 

Board Members Susan C. Daiber Rodney J. Dale 

Present: Karen S. Carter Glenn L. Duncan 
  Carolyn R. Morris 
  Jeri E. Stahr 

Absent: Douglas Weaver  

   
 

Roll Call 

President Susan Daiber called the regular meeting of the Board of School 
Trustees to order.  The pledge of allegiance was recited. 
 

Call to 
Order 

Mrs. Daiber discussed the invitation to speak protocol. 
 

 

Superintendent’s Student Advisory Council (SSAC) representatives 

introduced themselves: Giovanni Parga, a senior from Central High 
School (CHS) and Brooke Troyer, a junior from Memorial High School 
(MHS).  Brooke Troyer announced the presentation of Willy Wonka 

based on Charlie and the Chocolate Factory opens Saturday, March 18th.  
Ms. Troyer reported the jazz band, jazz strings and vocal jazz all 
received gold ratings and high scores at the recent ISSMA Jazz Festival 

and Maddie Crosbie performed with the Indiana Bandmasters 
Association All-State Band last weekend.  In sports the following 
athletes competed at the state level: three wrestlers, Christian Mejia, 

Tristan Goering and David Eli; swimmer Mitchell Rockrohr; and the 
bowling team with Brooklyn Schutz being named Indiana’s High School 
Bowler of the Year. The awards program for winter sports is Wednesday, 

March 22nd.  In academics, Ms. Troyer reported students have enjoyed 
the new electives of jewelry making and American Sign Language this 
year.  Also, SSAC is continuing to work on two projects: helping 

incoming freshmen gain school spirit with the annual class Olympics, 
and the multicultural cook off scheduled for May 7th.  In addition to 
SSAC, Giovanni Parga participates in symphony orchestra, PEERS 

teaching, is president of Key Club, Early College program, and is co-
president of the National Honor Society (NHS).  Mr. Parga reported on 
the recent success of the production of Hairspray; ISSMA competition 

results; the NHS sponsored blood drive, mock exams, ISTEP testing, the 
start of spring sports; and invited the Board to Blazerfest scheduled for 
April 13th. 

 

SSAC 

Representatives 

  



2 
 

By unanimous action, the Board approved the following minutes:  
January 10, 2017 – Regular Board Meeting - revised 

February 28, 2017 – Regular Board Meeting 
 

Approval of 
Minutes 

By unanimous action, the Board approved payment of claims totaling 

$2,692,004.92 as shown on the March 14, 2017, claims listing.  (Codified 
File 1617-121) 
 

Payment of 

Claims  

By unanimous action, the Board accepted with appreciation the following 
donations made to Elkhart Community Schools: $750.00 from MOR/ryde 
International and $500.00 from Jonathan and Mollie Krider, for the 

Central/Memorial ElkRobotic team to be used for registration fees and 
expenses at competitions; and $500.00 each from Heartland RV, LLC 
and Elkhart Plastics for Memorial’s volleyball program for lodging, food, 

transportation and other associated costs. 
 

Gift Acceptance 

By unanimous action, the Board approved estimated cash tuition rates 

for the 2017-2018 school year.  For K-12 the 2017-2108 school year, 
the rate remains the same as the previous year, at $6,700.00.  (Codified 
File 1617-122) 

 

Cash Tuition 

Rates 
 

By unanimous action, the Board approved proposed school fundraisers 

with noted correction in accordance with Board policy.  The funds raised 
through the listed activities are deposited into each school’s extra-
curricular fund (Codified File 1617-123) 

 

Fundraiser 

Approval 

Tony England, assistant superintendent of student services, reported on 
the success of the Anne Frank: A History For Today tours and the 

presentation by Eva Kor.  Continuing with the Elkhart Culture Series, Mr. 
England provided the schedule of presentations by author, Trudy 
Ludwig, at the end of this month.  Mr. England and Tessa Sutton, 

supervisor of connective leadership & inclusion, presented information 
being gathered and the creation of a response planning committee 
comprised of district staff and many local agencies.  The committee will 

develop protocol to respond to families facing struggles and fears about 
the national landscape regarding immigration, and to ensure our schools 
are safe spaces.  A parent meeting is scheduled for April 12th at 6:30 at 

Pierre Moran to help answer frequently asked questions. 
 

Student 
Services Report 

The Board was presented proposed revisions to Board Policy 3120.01S – 

Employment of Support Staff, for initial consideration.  
 

Board Policy 

3120.01S 

By unanimous action, the Board approved the submission of the 

following grants: 2017-2018 Adult Education Grant to Indiana Workforce 
Development (IWFD) for $800,000 and 2017-2018 Integrated English 
Literacy and Civics Education Grant to IWFD for $75,000 from Adult 

Education, as recommended by the administration.  (Codified File 1617-
124) 
 

Grant Approval 



3 
 

By unanimous action, the Board approved conference leave requests in 
accordance with Board policy for staff members as recommended by the 

administration on the March 14, 2017 listing. (Codified File 1617-125) 
 

Conference 
Leaves 

By unanimous action, the Board approved the following personnel 

recommendations of the administration: 
 

Personnel 

Report 

Agreements regarding unpaid time for two certified staff 

members. (Codified Files 1617-126) 

Consent 

Agreements 
 

Employment of certified staff member, Katie Green, grade 5 at 

Pinewood, for the 2016-2017 school year, effective on 3/13/17. 
 

Certified 

Employment 

Retirement of certified staff member, Brett Schuler, grade 5 at 

Pinewood, effective February 13, 2017 with 15 years of service. 
 

Certified  

Retirement 
 

Resignation of certified staff member Jennifer Pummill, grade 6 at 

Roosevelt, effective 5/26/17. 
 

Certified 

Resignation 
 

Personal leave for certified staff member Lisa Haeck, special 

education at Roosevelt, beginning 8/15/17 and ending 6/6/18. 
 

Certified Leave 

 

Health leave for certified staff member Judith Bridges at EACC, 
beginning 8/15/17 and ending 6/6/18. 

 

 

Parental leave for the following two (2) certified staff members, 
on dates indicated: 

Adria Anderson – Kindergarten at Bristol, beginning 
   8/15/17 and ending 6/6/18 
Brandy Hill – intervention (part-time) at Roosevelt, 

   beginning 8/15/17 and ending 6/6/18 
 

 

Maternity leave for certified staff member Penelope Clayton, 

kindergarten at Bristol, beginning 1/13/17 and ending 3/31/17. 
 

 

Change to maternity leave for certified staff member Alyssa 

Lanting, special education at Monger, beginning 3/22/17 and 
ending 4/14/17. 
 

 

Retirement of classified employee, Maxine Williams, food service 
at Pierre Moran, effective 3/31/17 with 12 years of service. 
 

Classified 
Retirement 
 

  



4 
 

Regular employment of the following five (5) classified 
employees, who have successfully completed their probationary 

periods, on dates indicated: 
Asa Ennis - district wide substitute teacher for ECS, 3/6/17 
Kristie Hess - bus driver unassigned at Transportation, 

   3/14/17 
Eddie Neal - paraprofessional at Memorial, 3/1/17 
Tameka Pittman - bus driver unassigned at Transportation 

   3/8/17 
Jeffrey Rohrer - bus driver unassigned at Transportation,  
   3/6/17 

 

Classified 
Employment 

 

Resignation of the following seven (7) classified employees effective 
on dates indicated:  

Lori Arisman - food service at Memorial, 3/10/17 
Chatuan Bailey - paraprofessional at Hawthorne, 3/10/17 
Miranda Doolittle - custodian at Roosevelt, 3/3/17 

Lori Elliot - secretary at EACC, 3/10/17 
M. Jayne Hammontree - secretary at Pierre Moran, 3/17/17 
Tamara Robison - paraprofessional at Beck, 3/17/17 

Toya Sheppard - bus helper/food service at Transportation, 
   3/17/17 

 

Classified 
Resignations 

 

Medical leave for classified employee Kayla Magyar, bus driver at 
Transportation, beginning 3/6/17 and ending 5/26/17. 

 

Voluntary 
Leave 

 
Board members, Carolyn Morris and Susan Daiber provide a report on 
the recent trip to Nashville, TN to study their academy and pathways 

programs.  The 12 representatives of the district were part of 400 
attendees to participate in school tours and conference sessions led by 
the leaders of the district.  Mrs. Daiber commented on how this program 

is aligned with our Strategic Plan initiative to prepare all students for 
careers or college and with community partners’ involvement become 
part of Elkhart’s future.  Dawn McGrath, deputy superintendent, and 

Mrs. Diaber commented on how the Career Center’s success compares 
to the Nashville programs and how all students participate in a major 
project at the end of the year.  A recent project mocked a catastrophic 

event, a bank hold-up taking place at their in-school bank, 
encompassing all academies such as medical, media, theatrics and news 
reporting.  Dr. McGrath also noted the opportunity to learn about block 

scheduling and community partner development, and the value of the 
time the team had together to further develop the ideas of what they 
saw in the context of the Elkhart vision.  The involvement of all 

students, the engagement of student ambassadors, and the enthusiasm 
of the team was noticed by all who attended.  Board member Glenn 
Duncan suggested future study trips include middle school staff 

members. 
 
 

 

From the Board 
 



5 
 

Bob Woods introduced Lamar Chupp who located a 1928 class ring while 
diving in a nearby Michigan lake.  Mr. Chupp opened his remarks by 

thanking the Board for their efforts and how pleased he is with the 
education his children are receiving in the district.  The ring he located 
has been added to memorabilia display in the lobby.  When asked about 

other finds, he mentioned locating a lost wedding ring and a buck knife 
he was able to return to the owners. 
 

From the Staff 

The meeting adjourned at approximately 7:50 p.m. 
 

Adjournment 

APPROVED: 

____________________________________ 
  Susan C. Daiber, President 
 

 
  ____________________________________ 
  Karen S. Carter, Vice President 

 
 
  ____________________________________ 

  Douglas K. Weaver, Secretary 
 

 
____________________________________ 

  Rodney J. Dale, Member 

 
 

____________________________________ 

  Glenn L. Duncan, Member 
 
 

  _____________________  ______________ 
  Carolyn R. Morris, Member 
 

 
  ____________________________________ 
  Jeri E. Stahr, Member 

Signatures 

 



MINUTES OF THE 
PUBLIC WORK SESSION 

OF THE 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 

 
Elkhart Community Schools 

Elkhart, Indiana 
 

March 21, 2017 
 
Pierre Moran Middle School, 200 West Lusher Avenue, Elkhart – 7:00 a.m. 
 

Time/Place 

Board Members Susan C. Daiber Rodney J. Dale 
Present: Karen S. Carter Carolyn R. Morris 
 Douglas K. Weaver Jeri E. Stahr 
   
Absent:  Glenn L. Duncan 
   
ECS Personnel Present: Tony England Pam Melcher 
 Tony Gianesi Carl Rust 
 Rob Haworth Kevin Scott 
 Dawn McGrath Doug Thorne 
   

 

Roll Call 

The Board heard an update on K-8 alternative education and long-term solutions 
presented by Tony England, Assistant Superintendent of Student Services, and 
Carl Rust, Elkhart Elementary Academy Director.  Tony Gianesi, Chief Operating 
Officer, guided a walk-through of the building taking into consideration the 
construction project possibilities as a result of the Strategic Plan, and discussed 
expectations regarding appearance and use of the building. 

 

Topics 

Discussed 

The meeting adjourned at approximately 9:00 a.m. 

 

Adjournment 

 
APPROVED: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Susan C. Daiber, President 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Karen S. Carter, Vice President 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Douglas K. Weaver, Secretary 
 

 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Rodney J. Dale, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Glenn L. Duncan, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Carolyn R. Morris, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Jeri E. Stahr, Member 

 

 

 

Signatures 

 

































 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

To: Dr. Haworth 
From: Kristie Stutsman 
Date: March 10, 2017 
RE: Donations for West Side Memorial Bench and Garden 
 
 
West Side Middle School would like to graciously acknowledge the donation of $1500 from 
Kerry & Gail West and Family to be used in purchasing the West Side Memorial Bench.  The 
staff and students are very appreciative of this kind donation which will allow us to not only 
purchase the bench, but to also landscape the area around the bench. 
 
 
Mr. & Mrs. Kerry West and Family 
58299 Randy Dr. 
Goshen, IN   46528 
 









policy 
 
 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES PERSONNEL 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Proposed Revised 3120.01S/page 1 of 5 

(as presented during the 3/14/17 BST meeting) 
 
 
 
 

EMPLOYMENT OF SUPPORT STAFF 
 
 
The Board recognizes that it is vital to the successful operation of the Corporation 
that support staff positions be filled with qualified and competent staff. 
 
The Board shall approve the employment of each support staff member employed by 
this Corporation. 
 
All support staff employees are "at-will" employees.  Their employment can be 
terminated with or without cause at any time.  No other representative of the 
Corporation has the authority to enter into any agreement for employment for any 
specified period of time with a support staff employee. 
 

All support staff have the responsibility to make themselves familiar with, and 
abide by, the laws of the State of Indiana as they affect their work, the policies 
and decisions of the Board, and the administrative guidelines designed to 
implement them.  All support staff shall be expected to carry out their assigned 
duties, support and enforce Board policies and administrative guidelines, submit 
required reports, protect district property, oversee students, and contribute to 
the education and development of the district’s students.  All support staff shall 
obey the rules and decisions of their supervisors.   

 
 
Individuals employed in the following categories shall be considered members of the 
staff: 
 
 A. food services 
   
 B. mechanics 
   
 C. custodians 
   
 D. bus drivers 
   
 E. bus helpers 
   



policy 
 
 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES PERSONNEL 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Proposed Revised 3120.01S/page 2 of 5 

(as presented during the 3/14/17 BST meeting) 
 
 F. maintenance personnel 
   
 G. therapists 
   
 H. secretary/business staff 
   
 I. executive assistants 
   
 J. paraprofessionals 
   
 K. technical assistants 
   
 L. registered nurses 
   
 M. social workers 
   
 N. miscellaneous workers 
   
 O. technology services 
 
Relatives of Board members may be employed by the Board, provided the member of 
the Board involved does not participate in any way in the discussion or vote on the 
employment. 
 
Should the Board choose to employ a family member as herein defined, both the 
family member and the Board member must file a conflict of interest statement. 
 
Any support staff member's intentional misstatement of fact material to his/her 
qualifications for employment or the determination of salary shall be considered by 
this Board to constitute grounds for dismissal. 
 
Relatives of staff members may be employed by the Board, provided the staff 
member being employed is not placed in a position in which s/he would be 
supervised by the relative staff member. 
 
When appropriate, no candidate for employment as a support staff member shall 
receive recommendation for such employment without having proffered visual 
evidence of his/her certification or pending application for certification. 
 
The Personnel Department will verify all new employee’s and substitute’s right to 
work in the United States. 



policy 
 
 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES PERSONNEL 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Proposed Revised 3120.01S/page 3 of 5 

(as presented during the 3/14/17 BST meeting) 
 
VOLUNTEER FIREFIGHTERS 
 
If a staff member is a volunteer firefighter and has notified the School Corporation in 
writing that s/he is a volunteer firefighter, the School Corporation may not discipline 
the staff member for being absent from duty by reason of responding to a fire or 
emergency call that was received prior to the time the staff member was to report to 
duty or for leaving his/her duty station to respond to a fire or an emergency call if 
s/he has authorization from his/her supervisor to leave duty in response to a call 
received after s/he has reported to work. 
 
The School Corporation shall require that the staff member present a written 
statement from the officer in charge of the volunteer fire department at the time of 
the absence indicating the staff member was engaged in an emergency call at the 
time of his/her absence. 
 
REQUIREMENTS FOR TITLE I AND OTHER PARAPROFESSIONALS 
 
Newly hired paraprofessionals – All paraprofessionals hired for a Title I supported 
program must have a secondary school diploma or its recognized equivalent and one 
of the following: 
 
 A. Completed two (2) years study at an institution of higher education; 

or 
   
 B. Obtained at least an associates degree; or 
   
 C. Met a rigorous standard of quality and demonstrate through formal 

State or local academic assessment: 
   
 1. knowledge of and the ability to assist in instructing, reading, 

writing, and mathematics; or 
   
 2. knowledge of and the ability to assist in instructing, reading 

readiness, writing readiness, and mathematics readiness, as 
appropriate. 

 
Existing paraprofessionals - All current paraprofessionals working for a Title I 
supported program must: 
 
 A. have a secondary school diploma or its recognized equivalent; 
   



policy 
 
 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES PERSONNEL 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Proposed Revised 3120.01S/page 4 of 5 

(as presented during the 3/14/17 BST meeting) 
 
 B. not later than January 8, 2006, meet the requirements for newly 

hired paraprofessionals as described above. 
 
Exceptions – These requirements do not apply to a paraprofessional: 
 
 A. who is proficient in English and a second language and serves as a 

translator primarily to enhance the participation of children in Title I 
programs; or 

   
 B. whose duties consist solely of conducting parental involvement 

activities. 
 
Paraprofessional duties – Paraprofessionals working for a Title I supported program 
may be assigned to: 
 
 A. provide one-on-one tutoring for eligible students during times when 

the teacher would not otherwise be instructing the student; 
   
 B. assist with classroom management, such as organizing instructional 

and other materials; 
   
 C. provide assistance in a computer laboratory; 
   
 D. provide assistance in a library or media center; 
   
 E. conduct parental involvement activities; 
   
 F. act as a translator; 
   
 G. provide instructional services to students, if working under the 

direct supervision of a teacher; 
   
 H. perform limited duties beyond classroom instruction or that do not 

benefit program participants, so long as those duties are also 
assigned to non-Title I paraprofessionals.  Title I paraprofessionals 
may not be assigned to more of these duties, proportional to their 
total work time, than the amount assigned to similar non-Title I 
paraprofessionals in the same school. 

 
I.C. 20-26-5-4, 20-26-9-12, 35-44-1-3, 36-8-12-10.5 
20 U.S.C. 6319 



policy 
 
 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES PERSONNEL 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Proposed Revised 3120.01S/page 5 of 5 

(as presented during the 3/14/17 BST meeting) 
 
 
© NEOLA 2006/March 28, 2017 



 

 
 

HEAD START CONSORTIUM 

AMENDMENT THREE TO INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 

This Amendment Three (“Amendment”) amends the Head Start Consortium 

Interlocal Agreement (“Agreement”) dated July 23, 2004, entered into by and between:  Baugo 

School Corporation, the Concord Community School Corporation, Elkhart Community Schools, 

the Goshen Community School Corporation, the John Glenn School Corporation, the 

Middlebury Community School Corporation, School City of Mishawaka, the Penn-Harris-

Madison School Corporation, the South Bend Community School Corporation, Wa-Nee 

Community Schools, Union-North United School Corporation.  Capitalized terms not defined 

herein shall have the meanings given to them in the Agreement.  The parties hereby amend the 

Agreement as follows: 

1. Joint Board of Directors and Its Powers.  Subsection (2) of Section 3.01, 

Members of Joint Board, is hereby deleted and replaced in its entirety with the following:  

“Voting members of the Joint Board will consist of the persons who from time to time serve as 

either the Ssuperintendents of each Participation Corporation or, if not the Superintendent of a 

Participating Corporation, then a single designees of each of the that Participating Corporations 

who has been appointed to represent the Participating Corporation by its Board of School 

Trustees and one parent of a child who is currently enrolled in the Head Start Consortium.  A 

designee appointed by a Participating Corporation shall be appointed for a period of no less than 

one academic year (absent extenuating circumstances) and must possess qualifications of a 

“district level administrator: superintendent” as set out in Indiana Administrative Code.  In 

addition, one parent of a child who is currently enrolled in the Head Start Consortium may serve 

as a voting member of the Joint Board.”  



 

 -2- 
 

2. Effect of Amendment.  Subject to the above modifications, the Agreement 

remains in full force and effect. 

3. Effective Date.  Under Section 6.04, Amendment to Agreement, this 

Amendment becomes effective upon the approval of a simple majority of the governing bodies 

of the Participating Corporations 



 

 -3- 
 

 
   
 BAUGO SCHOOL CORPORATION 
    
    
    
Date:   By:  
    
    
   Superintendent 
 
       
        
 CONCORD COMMUNITY SCHOOL CORPORATION 
    
    
    
Date:   By:  
    
    
   Superintendent 
 
 
   
 ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS 
    
    
    
Date:   By:  
    
    
   Superintendent 
 
 
 
   
 GOSHEN COMMUNITY SCHOOL CORPORATION 
    
    
    
Date:   By:  
    
    
   Superintendent 
 



 

 -4- 
 

 
   
 JOHN GLENN SCHOOL CORPORATION 
    
    
    
Date:   By:  
    
    
   Superintendent 
 
 
   
 MIDDLEBURY COMMUNITY SCHOOL 

CORPORATION 
    
    
    
Date:   By:  
    
    
   Superintendent 
 
 
   
 SCHOOL CITY OF MISHAWAKA 
    
    
    
Date:   By:  
    
    
   Superintendent 
 
 
 
   
 PENN-HARRIS-MADISON SCHOOL CORPORATION 
    
    
    
Date:   By:  
    
    
   Superintendent 



 

 -5- 
 

 
 
   
 SOUTH BEND COMMUNITY SCHOOL 

CORPORATION 
    
    
    
Date:   By:  
    
    
   Superintendent 
 
 
   
 WA-NEE COMMUNITY SCHOOLS 
    
    
    
Date:   By:  
    
    
   Superintendent 
 
 
   
 UNION-NORTH UNITED SCHOOL CORPORATION 
    
    
    
Date:   By:  
    
    
   Superintendent 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

US.109946041.01US.109946041.01 



policy 

 
 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES PERSONNEL 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Proposed Revised 3422.06S/page 1 of 18 
 
 
 
 

SECRETARIAL/BUSINESS COMPENSATION PLAN 
 
 
The Board of School Trustees hereby adopts the following wage schedule for 
secretaries commencing January 1, 2017.  In addition, the three percent (3%) 
employee contribution to PERF will be paid by the Elkhart Community Schools. 
 

    II II.3 II.6 III III.3 III.6 IV IV.3 IV.6 V 

1 0 – 55 days 11.55 11.74 11.97 12.18 12.48 12.79 13.11 13.60 14.05 16.30 

2 55 days – 1 year 11.83 12.07 12.35 12.63 13.07 13.50 13.94 14.39 14.84 17.09 

3 1 year plus 12.18 12.49 12.79 13.11 13.55 14.01 14.34 14.79 15.30 17.55 

4 2 years plus 12.63 13.07 13.50 13.94 14.32 14.69 15.10 15.54 16.02 18.27 

5 3 years plus 13.11 13.53 13.94 14.34 14.84 15.39 15.90 16.37 16.83 19.08 

6 4 years plus 13.94 14.32 14.69 15.10 15.58 16.13 16.66 17.13 17.58 19.83 

7 5 years plus 14.34 14.84 15.39 15.90 16.52 17.15 17.75 18.20 18.67 20.92 

 
*subject to Sections B-1 and B-2 of this policy. 
 
Those secretaries who work in the evening on a regular basis shall be paid an 
additional twenty-five cents ($.25) per hour for evening hours. 



policy 

 
 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES PERSONNEL 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Proposed Revised 3422.06S/page 2 of 18 
 
Secretarial Classifications 
 
The following job classifications will be in effect for the wage schedule listed above, 
subject to other sections of this policy: 
 
Classifications 
 

 
IV.V  Secretarial    Business   
 Certified Payroll Assistant 

Classified Payroll Assistant 
Classified Human Resources Assistant 

IV.  Secretarial    Business   

Personnel (Certified) 
Personnel (Classified) 
Director of Student Services  
Director of Career & Technical Ed.  
High School Principal 
Instruction & Learning 

Certified Payroll 
Classified Payroll 
Building Services Office Manager 
Payroll Assistant 
Director of Business Operations 
Insurance 
EACC – WVPE Office Manager 
Director of Transportation 
Mail Room/Duplicating  
       **(effective January 1, 2013) 

III.  Secretarial    Business 
C & I Secretary 
EACC Director of Community Ed 
EACC Principal 
EACC Central Office/Guidance/Accounting 
EACC – WVPE 
Elementary Principal 
High School Athletics/Student Activities 
High School Vice-Principal 
High School Registrar 
Middle School Principals 
LIFE ProgramElkhart Academy 
Building Services-Clerical Assistant 
Student Services Secretary (5 positions) 
Secretary/Personnel Human Resources  
Sr. Director of Data & Communications 
Switch Board/Personnel AssistantReceptionist 
Library Services (CO) 
*Federal Programs 

Business Office/Purchasing  
Cafeteria 
Payroll Assistant 
Computer Operator/Bus Garage 
Building Services-Textbook Coordinator 
Director of Food Services 
 
 



policy 

 
 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES PERSONNEL 
ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS Proposed Revised 3422.06S/page 3 of 18 
 
 

II.  Secretarial    Business 
Board of School Trustees Assistant 
Adult & Community Ed. Data Entry 
Adult & Community Ed. Receptionist 
Office Assistants  
High School Assistant Principal 
High School Media Center 
Middle School Assistant 
EACC Supervisor of Career & Technical Education 

EACC- Office  
PACE Program 
Teenage Parent Program 
Clerical Asst. / Food Service (MHS) 

 
*Subject to reclassification if this position becomes funded from the General Fund. 
 
There will be an increase equal to the base increase for any secretary who by 
placement of the classifications listed in A of this section would receive less than the 
base increase raise. 
 
January 10, 2017March 28, 2017







 
INTERNAL MEMO 

 
J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

2720 California Road • Elkhart, IN 46514 

 

 
 
 To:  Board of School Trustees 

  Dr. Rob Haworth 
  Superintendent 
  
From:  W. Douglas Thorne 
  District Counsel/Chief of Staff 
 
Date:  March 23, 2017 

 

Re:  Proposed Boundary Changes 
 
Attached to this memorandum are the proposed written boundary changes, current boundary maps, 
and proposed boundary maps for the following elementary schools: 

Beardsley Elementary School 
Hawthorne Elementary School 
Mary Beck Elementary School 
Riverview Elementary School 
Roosevelt Elementary School 
 
These proposed changes provide attendance boundaries for the Mary Beck - IUSB Lab School which will 
result in the school becoming a “walk zone” for all students.  I would like to bring this to the Board for 
its first reading on March 28, and again on April 11 for board consideration.   On March 28, I will 
provide each of you with a hard copy of the attached descriptions and maps to make it easier for you to 
review. 
 
The Instructional Leadership Department has scheduled a parent meeting on March 30 at Mary Beck to 
discuss the proposed attendance boundary. 
 
Should you have any further questions, please feel free to call. 
 
WDT/dls 

 



Page 1 JC 
School District Boundaries Administrative Regulation 

 
 
 BEARDSLEY 
 
North:  East on Bristol Street from Cassopolis Street to Independence Street. 
 
East:  South on Independence Street extended (both sides) to the St. Joseph River. 
 
South:  West on the St. Joseph River to the Elkhart River;.  Ssouth on the Elkhart River to 

Jackson Boulevard;.  Wwest on Jackson Boulevard to 3rd Main Street; south on 3rd 
Main Street to W. Lexington AvenueTyler Street (both sides); west on W. Lexington 
Avenue to the St. Joseph Riverwest on the railroad tracks to 6th Street; north on the 
St. Joseph River to the Sherman Street bridge; west on Bower Street (neither side) to 
Michigan Street. 

 
West:  North on 6th Street to W. Franklin Street; west on W. Franklin Street to Vistula 

Street; northwest on the St. Joseph River to Bower Street; west on Bower Street 
(neither side) to N. Michigan Street; North north on N. Michigan Street (neither 
side) to Mishawaka Street; east on Mishawaka Street extended to Cassopolis Street; 
north on Cassopolis Street to Bristol Street. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







Page 3 JC 
School District Boundaries Administrative Regulation 

 
 
  

HAWTHORNE 
 
North:   East on the railroad from Nappanee Street to Oakland Avenue; south on Oakland 

Avenue to W. Indiana Avenuenorth on Oakland Avenue to W. Franklin Street; 
east on W. Franklin Street to South Shore Drive; east on W. Franklin Street (both 
sides) to Collins Court; east on W. Franklin Street to S. 6th Street; south on S. 6th 
Street to the railroad tracks; west on the railroad tracks (north side only) to 11th 
Street extended; east on W. Indiana Avenue to S. 6th Street; east on W. Indiana 
Avenue to S. 6th Street..   

 
East:  South on S. 6th Street to W. Wolf Street; west east on W. Wolf Street to Benham 

Avenue; south on Benham Avenue to W. Lusher Avenue; west east on W. Lusher 
Avenue to Prairie Street; south on Prairie Street to Hively Avenue. 

  
South:  West on Hively Avenue to a point 225 feet east of Benham Avenue; south to 

approximately 425 feet north of Mishawaka Road; west to Benham Avenue, 
continue west .2 of a mile on a parallel to Mishawaka Road; north and east to 
Benham Avenue to include the Biblical Seminary; north on Benham Avenue to 
Hively Avenue; west on Hively Avenue to Compton Avenue extended; north on 
Compton Avenue extended to Carlton Avenue; west on Carlton Avenue to 6th 
Street; south on 6th Street to Hively Avenue; west on Hively Avenue to Oakland 
Avenue; north on Oakland Avenue to the north property line of Oaklawn Center; 
east to the west property line of Southdale Drive; north to the south property line 
of Sunrise Drive (south); west to Oakland Avenue; south on Oakland Avenue to 
the south property line of the Armory (966 feet north of Hively Avenue); west to 
15th Street extended; north on 15th Street extended to Leininger Avenue; west on 
Leininger Avenue  (both sides) to 17th Street; south on 17th Street to an east-west 
alley extended; west on the alley extended to 18th Street; north on 18th Street to 
Leininger Avenue; west on Leininger Avenue (both sides) to Nappanee Street. 

 
West:   North on Nappanee Street to railroad. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 







Page 2 JC 
School District Boundaries Administrative Regulation 

 
 

BECK 
 
North:  East on Jackson Boulevard from 3rd Street to Goshen Avenue.East on the railroad 

tracks from Prairie Street to the Elkhart River. 
 
East:  Southeast on Goshen Avenue to the railroad tracks; west on the railroad tracks to the 

Elkhart River; south and east on the Elkhart River to E. Indiana Avenue.South on the 
Elkhart River to E. Indiana Avenue. 

 
South:  West on E. Indiana Avenue to S. Main Street; northwest on S. Main Street to the 

railroad; west on the railroad to Oakland Avenue.West on E. Indiana Avenue to the 
railroad tracks. 

   
West:  North on Oakland Avenue to W. Franklin Street; east on W. Franklin Street to S. 

Shore Drive; east on W. Franklin Street from S. Shore Drive to Vistula Street (both 
sides); west and north on the St. Joseph River to W. Lexington Avenue; east on W. 
Lexington Avenue from the St. Joseph River to S. 3rd Street; north on S. 3rd Street to 
E. Jackson Boulevard.North on the railroad tracks to Prairie Street. 

 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 







Page 4 JC 
School District Boundaries Administrative Regulation 

 
 
 
 RIVERVIEW 
 
North:  East on the St. Joseph River from the Elkhart River to Middleton Run Road. 
 
East:  South on Middleton Run Road to .14 of a mile north of Middlebury Street; east, 

south and west on an irregular line back to Middleton Run Road at Middlebury 
Street, (this includes lot one and part of lot two in Fair Acres Addition, and adjacent 
land totaling 8.4 acres.); south on Middleton Run Road to .12 of a mile south of 
Middlebury Street. 

 
South:  West to Hall Manor Addition; south to Bryant Street; west to Hall Avenue; south to 

.25 of a mile south of Middlebury Street; west .33 of a mile to Toledo Road, 
(excluding approximately four acres of land on either side of Rowe Street.); west on 
Toledo Road (neither side) to Outer Drive; north on Outer Drive about 200 feet; east 
200 feet and north to Middlebury Street; west on Middlebury Street to the east city 
limits (approximately in line with Clayton Street and Parker Avenue including 
Buildings 300, 500, 700, and 900 in the Woodwind community); south to Indiana 
Avenue extended; west to the Elkhart River; north and west on the Elkhart River to 
the railroad tracks; west on the railroad tracks to Prairie Street; south on Prairie 
Street (west side only) to the railroad tracks; west on the railroad tracks to Main 
Street. 

    
 
West:  East and north on the Elkhart River to the railroad tracks; east on the railroad tracks 

to Goshen Avenue; northwest on Goshen Avenue to E. Jackson Boulevard; west on 
E. Jackson Boulevard to the Elkhart River.  North on the Elkhart River to the St. 
Joseph River.  North on Main Street to W. Jackson Boulevard; east on W. Jackson 
Boulevard to the Elkhart River; north on the Elkhart River to the St. Joseph River. 

 
 
 
  







Page 5 JC 
School District Boundaries Administrative Regulation 

 
 

ROOSEVELT 
 
North:   East on the railroad tracks from Oakland Avenue11th Street extended to Main 

Street. 
 
East:  Southeast South on S. Main Street to E. Lusher Avenue. 
 
South:  West on Lusher Avenue to Benham Avenue. 
 
West:  North on Benham Avenue to Wolf Avenue; west on Wolf Avenue to S. 6th Street; 

north on S. 6th Street to W. Indiana Avenue; west on W. Indiana Avenue to 11th 
Street extendedOakland Avenue; north on Oakland Avenue to the railroad tracks. 

 
 

 
 
  
 August 27, 2013March 28, 2017 



















 

INTERNAL MEMO 

 
J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

2720 California Road • Elkhart, IN 46514 

 

 

To:   Dr. Robert Haworth 

From:  Ms. Cheryl Waggoner 

Date:  March 28, 2017 

 

Personnel Recommendations 

 

CERTIFIED 

 

a. Retirement – We report the retirement of the following employees at the end of the 2016-17 school 

year: 

Zeno Ladas  Career Center/Automotive 19 Years of Service 

 

Denise Ryno  Bristol/Grade 3  30 Years of Service 

 

Sue Studer  Beck/Grade 1   27 Years of Service 

 

b. Medical Leave – We recommend a medical leave for the following employee: 

 

Rose Griffy  Roosevelt/Grade 2 

Begin:  3/1/17  End:  5/26/17 

 

c. Maternity Leave – We recommend a maternity leave for the following employees: 

 

Renee Ruocco  Daly/Grade 1 

Begin:  4/24/17  End:  5/26/17 

 

Paige Walters  Beck/Speech Pathologist 

Begin:  4/20/17  End:  4/21/17 

 

d. Parental Leave – We recommend a parental leave for the following employee: 

 

  Jill Coffman  Hawthorne/Grade 3 

 Begin:  8/15/17  End:  6/6/18 

 

e. Professional Leave – We recommend a professional leave for the following employee: 

 

Melissa Jennette Bristol/Principal 

Begin :  8/1/17  End :  6/15/18 

 

f. Resignation – We report the resignation of the following employee : 

 

Lori Hoese  West Side/Business 

Began:  8/10/16  Resign:  5/26/17 

 

 

 

 



 
 

Page 2 of 3 
 

CLASSIFIED 

 

a. Resignation – We report the resignation for the following classified employees: 

Michelle Collier  Transportation/Bus Driver 

Began: 2/22/16   Resign: 3/24/17 

 

Ivy Copeland   Hawthorne/Food Service 

Began: 9/22/15   Resign: 3/24/17 

 

Maria Cortez   Student Services/Secretary 

Began: 8/1/12   Resign: 3/8/17 

 

Elizabeth Delks  Central/Secretary 

Began: 9/10/12   Resign: 4/10/17 

 

Natasha Gawthrop  Beck/Paraprofessional 

Began: 8/14/13   Resign: 3/23/17 

 

Henry Griffin   Pierre Moran/Food Service 

Began: 3/22/16   Resign: 3/31/17 

 

Carina Losa   Tipton/Secretary 

Began: 9/16/08   Resign: 4/14/17 

 

Bill Wooley   Transportation/Bus Driver 

Began: 3/30/15   Resign: 4/14/17 

 

b. Termination – We report the termination for the following classified employees: 

 

Wade Bowser                     Beck/Custodian 

Began: 10/24/01                Terminate: 3/28/17 

                                                   Board Policy 3139.01S, a, c, f, g 

 

Kevin Hilger   Central/Food Service 

Began: 10/24/16  Terminate: 3/28/17 

    Board Policy 3139.01S a,c,f,g 

 

Jacqueline Robinson  Transportation/Bus Driver 

Began: 8/6/15   Terminate: 3/28/17 

    Board Policy 3139.01S a, c, f, g 

 

 

c. New Hires – We recommend regular employment for the following classified employees:  

 

Jeffrey DeCook  Tech Services/Support Tech 

Began: 1/19/17   PE: 3/16/17 

 

Helen Hardin   Osolo/Food Service  

Began: 1/24/17   PE: 3/21/17 

 



 
 

Page 3 of 3 
 

Tiffani Imes   Beck/Food Service 

Began: 1/24/17   PE: 3/21/17 

 

Lisa Owens   Bristol/Paraprofessional 

Began: 1/30/17   PE: 3/27/17 

 

Johnni Toombs  Transportation/Bus Helper 

Began: 1/23/17   PE: 3/28/17 

 

 

 


	Agenda - March 28, 2017
	Minutes - Work Session March 14 2017
	Minutes - Regular Meeting March 14 2017
	Minutes - Work Session March 21 2017
	Building Report - Memorial High School
	Balance Sheet  - February 2017
	Gift Acceptance - EACC
	Gift Acceptance - Memorial
	Gift Acceptance - West Side
	Fundraisers
	Policy 3120.01S
	EMPLOYMENT OF SUPPORT STAFF
	REQUIREMENTS FOR TITLE I AND OTHER PARAPROFESSIONALS


	Head Start_Amendment Three to Interlocal Agreement 2017
	Policy 3422.06S
	Policy 3422.07S Revised
	Boundary Memo to BST with descriptions and maps
	3-23-17 memo to BST re boundary changes
	2017 Revised JC Regulation _Beardsley changes
	Beardsley Maps
	2017 Revised JC Regulation _Hawthorne changes
	Hawthorne Maps
	2017 Revised JC Regulation _Mary Beck changes
	Mary Beck Maps
	2017 Revised JC Regulation _Riverview changes
	Riverview Maps
	2017 Revised JC Regulation _Roosevelt changes
	Roosevelt Maps

	Grants
	Overnight Trip Requests
	Conference Leaves
	Conference Leaves - Perkins
	Conference Leaves Addendum
	Personnel Report

